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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

AMERICA FIRST LEGAL
FOUNDATION,

611 Pennsylvania Ave SE #231
Washington, DC 20003

Plaintiff,
V.

UNITED STATES FOOD AND DRUG | Civil Action No. 25-cv-2917
ADMINISTRATION

10903 New Hampshire Ave.,
Silver Spring, MD 20993

Defendant.

COMPLAINT

1. Plaintiff America First Legal Foundation (“AFL”) brings this action
against the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) to compel
compliance with the Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”), 5 U.S.C. § 552.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C.
§ 552(a)(4)(B) and 28 U.S.C. § 1331. Additionally, it may grant declaratory relief
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2201 et seq.

3. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B) and

28 U.S.C. § 1391(e).
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PARTIES

4. Plaintiff AFL is a nonprofit organization working to promote the rule of
law 1n the United States, prevent executive overreach, ensure due process and equal
protection for all Americans, and encourage public knowledge and understanding of
the law and individual rights guaranteed under the United States Constitution and
the laws of the United States. AFL’s mission includes promoting government
transparency and accountability by gathering official information, analyzing it, and
disseminating it through reports, press releases, and/or other media, including social
media platforms, all to educate the public.

5. The Defendant FDA is an agency of the federal government under 5
U.S.C. § 552(f), with its headquarters at 10903 New Hampshire Ave., Silver Spring,
MD 20993. 1t has possession, custody, and control of the relevant records.

FACTS

6. On August 5, 2024, AFL sent FDA a FOIA request regarding the
off-label use of puberty blockers and cross-sex hormones in children. See Exhibit 1.

7. On August 6, 2024, FDA emailed AFL stating that the request had been
assigned Control Number 2024-7006. See Exhibit 2.

8. FDA also stated that it would need ten days in addition to FOIA’s
twenty-working-day time limit in order to comply with AFL’s request. See Exhibit 3.

9. As of the date of this filing, AFL has received no further communications

and no responsive records from FDA concerning this FOIA request.
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CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violation of FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552

10. AFL repeats paragraphs 1-9.

11.  AFL properly requested records within the possession, custody, and
control of the Defendant.

12. The Defendant has failed to produce the requested records within the
statutory time limit.

13.  Accordingly, AFL has exhausted its administrative remedies. See 5
U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(C)().

14. The Defendant has violated the FOIA by failing, within the prescribed
time limit, to reasonably search for records responsive to AFL’s FOIA request and
release nonexempt records.

RELIEF REQUESTED
WHEREFORE, AFL respectfully requests this Court:

1. Declare that the records sought by this request, as described in the
foregoing, must be disclosed pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552;

1. Order the Defendant to conduct searches immediately for all records
responsive to AFL’s FOIA request and demonstrate that they employed search
methods reasonably likely to lead to the discovery of responsive records;

111. Order the Defendant to produce by a date certain all non-exempt records
responsive to AFL’s FOIA request, accompanied by a Vaughn index of any responsive

records or portions of responsive records being withheld under a claim of exemption,;
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1v. Order the Defendant to grant AFL’s request for a fee waiver;
V. Award AFL attorney’s fees and costs pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(E);
and

V1. Grant AFL such other and further relief as this court deems proper.

Dated: August 29, 2025.
Respectfully submitted,

/s/ William Scolinos

William Scolinos (DC Bar No. 90023488)
Ian Prior (DC Bar No. 9001650)
Laura Stell (NC Bar No 59840)*
(301) 965-0179

AMERICA FIRST LEGAL FOUNDATION
611 Pennsylvania Avenue SE #231
Washington, DC 20003
William.Scolinos@aflegal.org
Ian.Prior@aflegal.org
Laura.Stell@aflegal.org

Counsel for America First Legal Foundation

* Pro Hac Vice motion forthcoming
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August 5, 2024
Via FOIA Portal

Food and Drug Administration
Division of Freedom of Information
Office of the Executive Secretariat, OC
5630 Fishers Lane, Room 1035
Rockville, MD 20857

Freedom of Information Act Request: Increased Risk of Suicide &
Depression Linked to Puberty Blockers for Transgender Children

Dear FOIA Officer:

America First Legal Foundation (“AFL”) is a national, nonprofit organization working
to promote the rule of law in the United States, prevent executive overreach, and
ensure due process and equal protection for all Americans, all to promote public
knowledge and understanding of the law and individual rights guaranteed under the
Constitution and laws of the United States. To that end, we file Freedom of
Information Act requests on issues of pressing public concern, then disseminate the
information we obtain, making documents broadly available to the public, scholars,
and the media. Using our editorial skills to turn raw materials into distinct work, we
distribute that work to a national audience through traditional and social media
platforms. AFL’s X page has over 255,000 followers, and the X page of our Founder
and President has over 682,000 followers.

I. Background

In the past several years, several European countries have significantly pulled back
on what is labeled “gender-affirming care” for minors. In reality, “gender-affirming
care” involves the practice of prescribing puberty blockers and cross-sex hormones for
children under 18, as well as using life-altering surgeries like mastectomies,
vaginoplasty, phalloplasty, and metoidioplasty to give children the irreversible
appearance of the opposite sex.

For example, in 2021, Swedish hospitals halted the use of puberty blockers in five out

611 Pennsylvania Ave SE #231 320 South Madison Avenue
Washington, DC 20003 Monroe, Georgia 30655

www.aflegal.org
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of six clinics, with a single clinic only using them for clinical trials.! Sweden also now
emphasizes psychotherapy for gender dysphoric minors instead of puberty blockers.

Last year, France’s National Academy of Medicine warned medical professionals that
the spike in demand for physicians to perform “gender-affirming care” on children is
an “epidemic-like phenomenon” with the hallmarks of a social contagion, exacerbated
by the “increasing supply of care.”? The Academy stressed that the “risk of over
diagnosis is real” and cited the high number of transgender young adults wishing to
detransition. Thus, the Academy concluded that it was crucial to “extend as much as
possible the psychological support phase” to guard against providing “irreversible”
medical care for “transient dysphoria.”

Finland has made similar findings, and its Council for Choices in Health Care
stressed that “[r]esearch data on the treatment of dysphoria due to gender identity
conflicts in minors is limited,” that medical intervention should be deemphasized in
favor of psychotherapy, and that surgery should not be part of any treatment.?

And just last week, the High Court of Justice in England upheld the NHS’s March
2024 decision to ban puberty blockers for treatment of children with gender
dysphoria.*

Despite the trend in Europe to change course amidst a clear social contagion, the
risks of transitioning children socially and medically, and the growing population of
detransitioners, the Biden-Harris Administration 1is taking an approach
diametrically opposed to the trends in Europe and shocking evidence in the United
States.

Over the past several years, AFL has launched a number of investigations into both
the US Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) and the US Department of Health and
Human Services (“HHS”)> to determine the extent of the Biden-Harris

Administration’s official actions to promote this inhumane experimentation on
children.

1 Mairead Elrodi, Europe Dialing Back Shocking Policies on Transgender Kids and Medical
Intervention, Daily Wire (Jun. 16, 2022), https:/tinyurl.com/3nmc7ef9.

2 Press Release, Medicine and Gender Transidentity in Children and Adolescents, FRENCH NATL
ACAD. MED. (Feb. 25, 2022), https://tinyurl.com/2p9fpjyd.

3 COHERE FINLAND, Medical Treatment Methods for Dysphoria Associated With Variations in
Gender Identity in Minors—Recommendation (Jun. 16, 2020), https://tinyurl.com/tzw7pusr.

4 Puberty Blockers Ban is Lawful, Says High Court, BBC (Jul. 29, 2024), https://tinyurl.com/5n7xnm86.

5 America First Legal Launches Investigation Into Biden’s HHS and Assistant Secretary Levine for
Advancing Experimental Transgender Medical Procedures on Children, America First Legal (Mar 23,
2023) https://tinyurl.com/2a2tzsu5; America First Legal Launches Investigation into the Biden HHS’ Role
in the Federal Prosecution of Whistleblower Dr. Eithan Haim, America First Legal (Jul. 22, 2024)
https://tinyurl.com/3dteh9ub.
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On September 29, 2022, AFL sent the FDA a FOIA request regarding the off-label
use of puberty blockers in children. After the FDA failed to produce the requested
documents, AFL sued. From this lawsuit, AFL discovered communications from FDA
doctors admitting to an increased risk of suicide and depression for transgender
children prescribed puberty blockers. Despite this admission, FDA doctors
emphasized the importance of full FDA approval for the use of puberty blockers in
transgender children.

From: Sullivan, Shannon <Shannon.Sullivan@fda.hhs.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, January 25, 2022 12:12 PM

To: Kehoe, Theresa <Theresa.Kehoe@fda.hhs.gov>

Cc: Lowy, Naomi <Naomi.Lowy@fda.hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] question on puberty blocking drugs

Hi Theresa,

DMEP did do a safety review of the GnRH agonist class in pediatric patients in 2016/2017,
which was initiated after publication of an article by Kaiser Health News in which adults with
histories of CPP attributed multiple complaints to prior use of a GnRH agonist. The complaints
were extensive and variable, and included fibromyalgia type symptoms, infertility, PCOS, and
weight gain, among others. Our review focused on suicidal ideation/depression, seizures, and
bone health, and we reviewed all cases of these AEs in pediatric patients exposed to a GnRH
agonist. Most of these patients had CPP but a handful were transgender kids using the drugs
off-label. We found no effect on bone (after factoring in catch-up growth), including no

increase in fracture risk. We did find increased risk of depression and suicidality, as well as
increased seizure risk and we issued SLCs to the entire class for these AEs (added to W&P in
2017).

Regarding use of GnRH agonists in the transgender population, no company has come in for
this indication to date. DUOG has done a patient listening session with trans kids and separately
with trans adults, which I participated in, and there is definitely a need for these drugs to be
approved for gender transition, as they are typically not covered by insurance and are expensive
out of pocket. It was my understanding that DUOG would take these applications if and when
any do come in.

Let me know if I need to provide additional details on any of this.
Thanks
Shannon

Shannon Sullivan
Clinical Team Leader
Division of General Endocrinology

To better understand the FDA’s activities with respect to the off-label use of puberty
blockers in children, particularly as it relates to increased risk of suicide and
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depression, AFL now requests the following pursuant to the Freedom of Information
Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a).

II.

FEQEEDOER

II1.

Custodians

Patrizia Cavazzoni, Director, Center for Drug Evaluation and Research
Theresa Kehoe, Director, Division of General Endocrinology

Naomi Lowy, Deputy Director, Division of General Endocrinology
Elisabeth Hanan, Chief, Project Management Staff

LaiMing Lee, Associate Director for Labeling

Lynne Yao, Director, Division of Pediatric and Maternal Health

Leyla Sahin, Senior Medical Officer

. Lily Mulugeta, Associate Director

Shannon Sullivan, Medical Officer, Clinical Team Leader, Division of General
Endocrinology

Requested Records

The relevant time frame is January 21, 2021, to the date processing is completed:

1. All records containing the following search criteria:

IV.

(“child!” OR “minor” OR “pediatr!”) AND

(“Lupron” OR “Leuprorelin” OR “Fensolvi” OR “Synarel” OR “Nafarelin” OR
“Supprelin” OR “Vantas” OR “Triptodur” OR “Histrelin” OR “puberty block!”
OR “GnRH agonist” OR “GnRH analogues”) AND

(“suicid!” OR “depress!” OR “psych!”) AND
“approv!” AND
(“off-label” OR “off label”) AND

(“gender dys!” OR “gender identity” OR “trans!”).

Fee Waiver

AFL requests a waiver of all search and duplication fees associated with this request
under 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(111) and 21 C.F.R. § 20.46. First, AFL is a qualified non-
commercial public education and news media requester. Our officials routinely
appear on national television and use social media platforms to disseminate the
information it has obtained about federal government activities. In this case, AFL
will make your records and your responses publicly available for the benefit of
citizens, scholars, and others, and the public’s understanding of your policies and
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practices will be enhanced through AFL’s analysis and publication of the requested
records. As a nonprofit organization, AFL does not have a commercial purpose, and
releasing the requested information is not in AFL’s financial interest.

V. Conclusion

If you have any questions about how to construe this request for records or believe
further discussions regarding search and processing would facilitate a more efficient
production of records of interest to AFL, please do not hesitate to contact me at
FOIA@aflegal.org. Finally, if AFL’s request for a fee waiver is not granted in full,
please contact us immediately upon making that determination.

Thank you in advance for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

/s/ Ian D. Prior
Senior Advisor
America First Legal Foundation
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AFL FOIA <foia@aflegal.org>

FDA Receipt of FOI Request Control # 2024-7006

FDA_FOl@fda.gov <FDA_FOl@fda.gov> Tue, Aug 6, 2024 at 7:30 AM
To: foia@aflegal.org
Cc: FDAFOIA@fda.hhs.gov

Control number: 2024-7006

Please find the attached acknowledgement regarding your FOIA request.

Note: Do NOT reply directly to this E-mail

ﬂ Acknowledgement Letter.PDF
60K
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p2Y U.S. FOOD & DRUG

ADMINISTRATION

August 06, 2024

In Reply refer to
FOIA Control #:
AMERICA FIRST LEGAL FOUNDATION 2024-7006
REED RUBENSTEIN
611 Pennsylvania Ave SE #231 Requester reference:

Washington DC 20003 US

Dear Requester:

The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has received your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request for records
regarding:

Puberty Blockers see the attached for the full request.

In processing your FOIA request, FDA will apply, as appropriate, the FOIA exemptions in 5 USC 552(b) and the
foreseeable harm standard in 5 USC 552(a)(8)(i). We will respond as soon as possible and may charge you a fee for
processing your request. If your informational needs change, and you no longer need the requested records, please
contact us to cancel your request, as charges may be incurred once processing of your request has begun. For more
information on processing fees, please see http://www.fda.gov/Regulatorylnformation/FOI/FOIAFees/default.htm.
PLEASE NOTE: HOURLY RATES FOR SEARCH AND REVIEW INCREASED FOR ALL REQUESTS RECEIVED
ON OR AFTER JUNE 1, 2023.

Due to an increase in the number of incoming requests, we may be unable to comply with the twenty-working-day time
limit in this case, as well as the ten additional days provided by the FOIA. The actual processing time will depend on the
complexity of your request and whether sensitive records, voluminous records, extensive search, and/or consultation
with other HHS components or other executive branch agencies are involved. Please note that requests for medical
device approval records (e.g. 510K, PMA, DEN) may take up to 18 to 24 months to process.

If you have any questions about your request, please call Pamela A. Prue, Information Technician, at (301) 796-8984 or
write to us at:

Food and Drug Administration

Division of Freedom of Information

5630 Fishers Lane, Room 1035

Rockville, MD 20857

If you call or write, use the FOIA control number provided above which will help us to answer your questions more
quickly.

You also have the right to seek dispute resolution services from:

Office of Government Information Services and/or FDA FOIA Public Liaison
National Archives and Administration Office of the Executive Secretariat
8601 Adelphi Road — OGIS US Food and Drug Administration
College Park, MD 20740-6001 5630 Fishers Lane, Room 1050
Telephone:202-741-5770 Rockville, MD 20857

Toll-Free: 1-877-684-6448 Email: FDAFOIA@fda.hhs.gov

Email:ogis@nara.gov
Fax: 202-741-5769

Sincerely,

SARAH KOTLER
Director
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FOIA Summons
1/13

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 'LEAR FOR
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

:

AMERICA FIRST LEGAL FOUNDATION
Plaintiff

V.

UNITED STATES FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTR

Defendant

Civil Action No. 295-CV-2917

S N N N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) .
The Honorable Pamela Bondi

U.S. Attorney General

U.S. Department of Justice
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, D.C. 20530-0001

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 30 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) you must
serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney, whose name and

address are: - .
William Scolinos

AMERICA FIRST LEGAL FOUNDATION
611 Pennsylvania Avenue SE #231
Washington, DC 20003

If you fail to respond, judgment by default may be entered against you for the relief demanded in the
complaint. You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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FOIA Summons (1/13) (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 25-cv-2917

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

On (date) . or

O Ileft the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

. a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) . and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O Iserved the summons on (name of individual) . who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

On (date) .or
O Ireturned the summons unexecuted because . or
O Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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FOIA Summons
1/13

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 'LEAR FOR
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

:

AMERICA FIRST LEGAL FOUNDATION
Plaintiff

Civil Action No. 295-CV-2917

V.

UNITED STATES FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTR

Defendant

S N N N N N

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) .
U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Attorney's Office for the District of Columbia
Civil Process Clerk

601 D St. NW

Washginton, DC 20530

Email Service to: USADC.ServiceCivil@usdoj.gov

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 30 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) you must
serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney, whose name and

address are: - .
William Scolinos

AMERICA FIRST LEGAL FOUNDATION
611 Pennsylvania Avenue SE #231
Washington, DC 20003

If you fail to respond, judgment by default may be entered against you for the relief demanded in the
complaint. You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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FOIA Summons (1/13) (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 25-cv-2917

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

On (date) . or

O Ileft the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

. a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) . and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O Iserved the summons on (name of individual) . who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

On (date) .or
O Ireturned the summons unexecuted because . or
O Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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FOIA Summons
1/13

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 'LEAR FOR
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

:

AMERICA FIRST LEGAL FOUNDATION
Plaintiff

V.

UNITED STATES FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTR

Civil Action No. 295-CV-2917

S N N N N N

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) . . .
Chief Counsel, Food and Drug Administration
ATTENTION: LITIGATION
White Oak Building 31, Room 4544
10903 New Hampshire Ave., Silver Spring, MD 20993-0002.
Email Service to: OC-OCC-FDA-Litigation-Mailbox@fda.hhs.gov

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 30 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) you must
serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney, whose name and

address are: - .
William Scolinos

AMERICA FIRST LEGAL FOUNDATION
611 Pennsylvania Avenue SE #231
Washington, DC 20003

If you fail to respond, judgment by default may be entered against you for the relief demanded in the
complaint. You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

ANGELA D. CAESAR, CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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FOIA Summons (1/13) (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 25-cv-2917

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

On (date) . or

O Ileft the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

. a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) . and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O Iserved the summons on (name of individual) . who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

On (date) .or
O Ireturned the summons unexecuted because . or
O Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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CIVIL COVER SHEET

Page 1 of 2

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS

AMERICA FIRST LEGAL FOUNDATION
611 Pennsylvania Ave., SE #231

Washington, D.C. 20003

(b) COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED PLAINTIFF
(EXCEPTIN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

DEFENDANTS

UNITED STATES FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION

1093 New Hampshire Ave.,
Silver Spring, MD 20993

COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRSTLISTED DEFENDANT 11001

(IN U.S.PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)
NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED

(c) ATTORNEYS (FIRMNAME, ADDRESS, AND TELEPHONENUMBER)

William Scolinos (DC Bar No. 90023488)); lan Prior (DC
Bar No. 9001650); Laura Stell (NC Bar No 59840)
AMERICA FIRST LEGAL FOUNDATION

611 Pennsylvania Avenue SE #231

WA lamhinAatAan N NNANND

ATTORNEYS (IF KNOWN)

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (PLACEAN x INONEBOX FOR
(PLACEANXINONEBOXONLY) PLAINTIFF ANDONE BOX FOR DEFENDANT) FOR DIVERSITY CASESONLY!
. PTF DFT PTF DFT
1 US. Govemment O 3 Federal Question O
Plamtiff (US. Govemment Not a Party) | Citizen ofthis State O 1 O 1 Incorporated or Principal Place 4 O 4
of Busmess m This State
@ 2 US. Govemment O 4 Dive_rsity B ) Citizen of Another State O 2 O 2 Incosporated and PrincipalPlace O 5 O 5
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of . -
Parties in item ITT) B ) of Busmess m Another State
Citizen or Subject ofa O 3 O 3
Foreign Country Foreign Nation O 6 O 6

IV. CASE ASSIGNMENT AND NATURE OF SUIT

(Place an X in one category, A-N, that best represents your Cause of Action and one in a corresponding Nature of Suit)

O A. Antitrust

[1410 Antitrust

O B. Personal Injury/
Malpractice

1 310 Airplane

D 315 Airplane Product Liability

[ 320 Assault, Libel & Slander

D 330 Federal Employers Liability

[ 340 Marine

[ 345 Marine Product Liability

[ 350 Motor Vehicle

D 355 Motor Vehicle Product Liability

D 360 Other Personal Injury

D 362 Medical Malpractice

[ 365 Product Liability

D 367 Health Care/Pharmaceutical
Personal Injury Product Liability

1 368 Asbestos Product Liability

O c Administrative Agency

Review

D 151 Medicare Act

Sacial Security

[ s61 HIA (13951f)

[ 862 Black Lung (923)

[ 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))
[ 864 SSID Title XVI

[ 865RSI (405(g))

Other Statutes

[ 891 Agricultural Acts

[ 893 Environmental Matters
[] 890 Other Statutory Actions (If

Administrative Agency is
Involved)

O b. Temporary Restraining
Order/Preliminary
Injunction

Any nature of suit from any category
may be selected for this category of
case assignment.

*(If Antitrust, then A governs)*

® E. General Civil (Other)

OR

QO F. ProSe General Civil

Real Property
D 210 Land Condemnation

D 220 Foreclosure
[]230Rent, Lease & Ejectment
1240 Torts to Land

1245 Tort Product Liability
1290 All Other Real Property

Personal Property

[1370 Other Fraud

1371 Truth in Lending

D 380 Other Personal Property
Damage

D 385 Property Damage
Product Liability

Bankruptcy
] 422 Appeal 28 USC 158
[ 423 Withdrawal 28 USC 157

Prisoner Petitions
D 535 Death Penalty
540 Mandamus & Other
[ 550 Givil Rights
D 555 Prison Conditions
560 Civil Detainee — Conditions
of Confinement

i | 820 Copyrights

[ 830 Patent

D 835 Patent — Abbreviated New
Drug Application

[ 840 Trademark

1880 Defend Trade Secrets Act of
2016 (DTSA)

Federal Tax Suits

D 870 Taxes (US plaintiff or
defendant)

[ 871 IRS-Third Party 26 USC
7609

Forfeiture/Penalty

[ 625 Drug Related Seizure of
Property 21 USC 881

[ 690 Other

Other Statutes

D 375 False Claims Act

[ 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
3729(a))

D 400 State Reapportionment

[] 430 Banks & Banking

[ 450 Commerce/ICC Rates/etc

[ 460 Deportation

D 462 Naturalization
Application

D 465 Other Immigration Actions

D 470 Racketeer Influenced
& Corrupt Organization

D 480 Consumer Credit

D 485 Telephone Consumer
Protection Act (TCPA)

[ 490 Cable/Satellite TV

1 850 Securities/Commaodities/
Exchange

1896 Arbitration

D 899 Administrative Procedure
Act/Review or Appeal of
Agency Decision

1 950 Constitutionality of State
Statutes

1890 Other Statutory Actions
(if not administrative agency
review or Privacy Act)
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O G. Habeas Corpus/ O H. Employment O 1. FOIA/Privacy Act O J. Student Loan
2255 Discrimination
D 530 Habeas Corpus — General D 442 Civil Rights — Employment D 895 Freedom of Information Act D 152 Recovery of Defaulted
1 510 Motion/Vacate Sentence (criteria: race, gender’/sex, 1890 Other Statutory Actions Student Loan
[ 463 Habeas Corpus — Alien national origin, @f Privacy Act) (excluding veterans)
Detainee discrimination, disability, age,
religion, retaliation)
*(If pro se, select this deck)* *(If pro se, select this deck)*
O K. Labor/ERISA O L. Other Civil Rights O M. Contract O N. Three-Judge
(non-employment) (non-employment) Court
D 110 Insurance
D 710 Fair Labor Standar-ds Act D441 Voting (if not Voting Rights D 120 Marine D 441 Civil Rights — Voting
1720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations Act) 1130 Miller Act (if Voting Rights Act)
D 740 Labor Railway Act D 443 Housing/Accommodations D 140 Negotiable Instrument
[ 751 Family and Medical 1440 Other Civil Rights 150 Recovery of Overpayment
Leave Act D 445 Americans w/Disabilities — & Enforcement of
D 790 Other Labor Litigation Employment Judgment
1791 Empl. Ret. Inc. Security Act 1446 Americans w/Disabilities — 1153 Recovery of Overpayment
Other of Veteran’s Benefits
[]448 Education 1160 Stockholder’s Suits
D 190 Other Contracts
1195 Contract Product Liability
1196 Franchise
V. ORIGIN
® 10riginal ) 2Removed () 3Remanded () 4 Reinstated () 5 Transferred () 6 Multi-district () 7 Appeal to O 8 Multi-district
Proceeding from State from Appellate or Reopened from another Litigation District Judge Litigation —
Court Court district (specify) fromMag. Direct File

Judge

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION (CITE THE U.S. CIVIL STATUTE UNDER WHICH YOU ARE FILING AND WRITE A BRIEF STATEMENT OF CAUSE.)
Violation of FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552, failing to release responsive, non-exempt records

VIL. REQUESTED IN CHECKIF THISIS A CLASS DEMAND $ Check YES only if demanded in complaint
COMPLAINT ACTIONUNDERFRCP.23 JURY DEMAND: ves[__] No
VIII. RELATED CASE(S) (See instruction) YES | I NO Ifyes, please complete related case form
IF ANY [x]
DATE: 08/29/2025 SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD /s/ William Scolinos

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET JS-44
Authority for Civil Cover Sheet

The JS-44 civil cover sheet and the mformation contamed herem neither replaces nor supplements the filings and services of pleadings or other papersasrequired
by law, exceptasprovided by local rules of court. This form,approved by the Judicial Conference of the United Statesin September1974.1s required for the use of the
Clerk of Court for the purpose of mitiating the civil docketsheet. Consequently,a civil cover sheet 1s submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complamt filed.
Listed below are tips for completing the civil coversheet. These tips comcide with the Roman Numeralson the cover sheet.

L COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED PLAINTIFF/DEFENDANT (b) County of residence: Use 11001 to indicate plamtiff if resident
of Washington, DC, 88888 if plamtiffis resident of United Statesbutnot Washington, DC, and 99999 if plamtiffis outside the United States.

III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES: This section 1s completed only if diversity of citizenship was selected as the Basis of Junsdiction
under Section IT.

V. CASE ASSIGNMENT AND NATURE OF SUIT: The assignment of a judge to your case will depend on the category you select thatbest

represents the pnmary cause of action found m your complamt. You may select only one category. You mustalso select one comresponding
nature of suit found underthe category of the case.

VL CAUSE OF ACTION: Cite the U.S. Civil Statute underwhich youare filing and write a brief statement of the pnmary cause.

VIII. RELATED CASE(S), IF ANY: Ifyou indicated that there is a related case, you must complete a related case form, which may be obtamed from
the Clerk’s Office.

Because of the need for accurate and complete nformation, you should ensure the accuracy of the mformation provided pnor to signing the form.
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